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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of July 3, 2013 is now in
session. I'm Councilmember Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. May I
request that anyone disable their cell phones or anything else that can make noise for the
duration of this meeting. Voting Members we have present, Don Guzman, Vice-Chair is
excused. We have Gladys Baisa who will join us shortly, Stacy Crivello
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Donald Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOICAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: We have James Giroux, Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MR. GIROUX: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we have with us Will Spence and Mr. Fasi.
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MR. FASI: Good afternoon, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: The applicant's representatives we have today, Dr. Roger Kehler and
Leilani Pulmano, Project Manager, Munekiyo and Hiraga, Incorporated. Clarita Balala,
Committee Secretary and Clara Nakata, Legislative Secretary [sic]. Today we have one
item on our agenda for consideration, Change in Zoning for 1476 South Kihei Road, Site
of Kihei Veterinarian Clinic in Kihei. We'll now accept public testimony. For
individuals that will be testifying in the Chamber, please sign up at the desk in the front
in the eighth floor lobby just outside the Chamber door. If you will be testifying from
one of the remote sites locations specified on the meeting agenda please sign up with the
District Office Staff at that location. Testimony will be limited to the items listed on the
agenda today. Each testifier will be allowed to testify on the item for up to three minutes
with one minute to conclude if necessary. When testifying please state your name and
the name of any organization you are representing. We have a connection to the District
Offices so residents from those sites can testify. Chair will request that the staff there
identify themself. Hana Office. Hana Office, are you there?
MS. LONO: This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office. Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai Office.
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Lanai Office.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez at Lanai's Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We are going to rotate from the Offices, our remote sites and
with testifiers over here. We will now start on testimony in the Chamber. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Kathy Snyder.
CHAIR CARROLL: At the podium please state your name.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY....
MS. SNYDER CARLSON: My name is Kathy Snyder Carlson. Go? Begin?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MS. SNYDER CARLSON: I'm here to testify in favor of Dr. Kehler and his project on South
Kihei Road. I've been a resident of Maui for 33 years. I'm a small business owner.
My...I got married here. My children were born and raised here. Before I came to Maui
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I grew up in a little town in Minnesota. I have a graduate advanced degree in Biology
and in Chemistry with a minor being in Chemistry. I graduated from college and applied
for and was offered jobs with the Department of Natural Resources in Minnesota to work
in the boundary waters in northern Minnesota, the boundary waters being northern
Minnesota, Southern Canada. I was offered positions as Fish and Wildlife Managers,
Game Warden, and various offshoots of that. I never took those jobs. My life took a big
turn to the left and I landed on Maui very gratefully. I am an environmentalist. My
family's an environmentalist. My daughter graduated from Saint Anthony; she went on
to get an advanced degree in Interior Commercial Green Design. She's certified in
everything green possible. She works for a company in Portland called Green Building
Service and they are desperately trying to green corporate America to save the world, as
you call it here, the "aina". She also teaches LEED certification classes at a college there
and she is the president of a nonprofit organi7i4ion that lobbies legislature in Portland to
change laws for the good, for the green. I only tell you about that 'cause I want you to
understand how committed I am and my family is to the environment. She either runs to
work which is a seven mile run or she takes community transportation. I don't know if
any of you have been to Dr. Kehler's, the parcel that we're talking about but what he's
doing down there with the wetlands, he has by hand spent many, many hours of hand
labor digging out that wetlands which has brought in indigenous Hawaiian birds, your
stilts. They're on the Endangered Species List. He's also planting and propagating
indigenous, endangered plants in that area. His goal down there, no matter what he ends
up building there if he's allowed, is to keep that parcel and to continue to propagate the
indigenous Hawaiian plants and birds and turn it into, like, a community little kind of
park where you could bring kindergarteners, grade school people and have a tour of this
incredible Hawaiian, native Hawaiian birds and plants. I don't think any of us that live
here really, ultimately who have been blessed to be here and some of you born and raised
here really want big, big development here. It's not about that. We don't want any more
strip malls in Kihei. We just want to keep this green and beautiful. Thank you for -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SNYDER CARLSON: --your time. I appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions? Excuse... could you.. .Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair and thank you, Ms. Snyder Carlson for
being here and for your testimony. Just I have no doubt that and I've seen the property -MS. SNYDER CARLSON: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I drive by it all the time and it's.. .things are being done very
well over there. Just a question for you. Are you aware that if the Change in Zoning
goes through which is B-2 that when and if the good doctor leaves Maui in one way, one
form or the other, a gas station could be put in there?
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MS. SNYDER CARLSON: We don't want a gas station there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I'm just letting you know, are you aware that if the Change
in Zoning...
MS. SNYDER CARLSON: I'm aware that's a possibility. I'm aware that some of you have
talked to him and I'm aware.. .1 testified at the Planning Commission hearing and I know
they put some restrictions there that he agreed to as far as height and agreed, we don't
want gas stations and massage parlors and dance halls and none of that, none of that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, that unfortunately is not in what came through so
we're going to have to discuss that. Thank you.
MS. SNYDER CARLSON: Okay. I don't know anything about a gas station. The one thing,
question I have for you that really troubles me though, is I understand that when he got,
bought this property it was Residential zoned but the Master Plan was business, right?
And that was 17 years ago. He got his Continuous [sic] Use Permit and so for 17 years
he's been denied having this as commercial property when in fact he's been paying for
17 years taxes on commercial property. I'm not a politician. I don't understand it but
there's something about that when that was indeed on the Master Plan when he purchased
the property and having been denied and paying those taxes, I don't get it. Why...there's
something wrong.
COUNCLLMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you. And our Chair Gladys Baisa is with us. Welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I apologize for being tardy.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata. Oh, we almost forgot our satellite offices over here. Hana
Office, do you have anyone there to give public testimony today?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai Office, is there anyone present to give testimony
today?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai Office, is there anyone present to give testimony today?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Irene Bowie.
MS. BOWIE: Aloha, Chair and Committee members. I'm Irene Bowie, Executive Director of
Maui Tomorrow Foundation. I submitted some testimony or actually as testimony some
correspondence with Paula Levin from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Office yesterday
regarding this parcel and Kihei wetlands in general and I have a few comments. I'd like
to say first off, Dr. Kehler's a great veterinarian; I've been a customer and my animals
were patients. He was kind enough to take me on a site visit down there about a month
ago. I think he's worked really hard; however, I think that the fact that there has not been
a wetland management plan for this parcel is a huge red flag and I really put the onus on
this on the Planning Department and the consultants that Dr. Kehler has had. This
Conditional Use Permit going back to 2008, Condition 9 said that there would be a
management plan; there would be consultation with Army Corps of Engineers and that
within six months from the effective date of the Ordinance which was in 2008 there
would be some type of a plan. When this was before the Planning Commission last fall, I
believe it was, there was a two-page, unsigned, undated report and you know, again, I'm
not putting this on Dr. Kehler at all, but your consultants and your Planning Department
really ought to be able to tell him you need to go to Fish and Wildlife, you need to go to
the State DLNR, DOFA, you need to consult with EPA and you need to go back to Army
Corps of Engineers. I hope that you folks have had the time this morning to read the
comments from Paula Levin with U.S. Fish and Wildlife that's talking about the
diminished wetlands in Kihei and not only for wildlife restoration and endangered species
but flood protection, storm water runoff that needs to go into these wetland areas and we
keep diminishing the wetlands over and over again. I'm afraid that this move to up-zone
to B-2 is going to set a precedent. Right next door to this parcel there are plans for a
two-story, 50-space parking lot wellness center to come in and that will be coming before
you before too long. So these kinds of things really, really need to be watched. In
closing, I'd like to just to let you know also that I followed closely the medical plaza at
Kanaha. The only reason that that thing got the zoning and was at the Planning
Commission was that it was supposedly going to bring doctors in; it was going to be a
place of healing. It was this wonderful concept. Well, they're bankrupt now and they're
looking for anybody that they can offload that on to, so I think we really have to be
careful that what we're doing is not based on people, personalities but long-range visions
for our County. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair and thank you, Ms. Bowie, for being here
and thank you for the correspondence. I see the correspondence there but I have a
little...a question on you were saying that you don't support it going to B-2?
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MS. BOWIE: Well, you know, I certainly think that if, I understand that there's the issue of
conformance with the Community Plan and if you want to consider that I think you do
need to have some consultation with U.S. Fish and Wildlife, have some input on this
from those that know what they're talking about for this, and then if you decide to go
ahead and put this into B-2 you can put some really strong conditions on this. They say
again and again these wetland designations are supposed to be in perpetuity. So again, as
Councilmember Couch mentioned earlier, if someone else buys this property what
happens down the line to this? So, you know, I just want to see U.S. Fish and Wildlife
weigh in on this. I want to see EPA.. .when this was originally given approval back in
1997 there wasn't all the EPA move towards the Clean Water Act also so there's really
important consultation that needs to take place. And again, I would just question why a
citizens' group has to be the one to contact these agencies rather than our County
Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions? If not, thank you.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is William Gresham He'll be followed by Wendee
Murayama.
MR. GRESHAM: Thank you. Good afternoon, Chair and Council. I'm William, Bill Gresham,
Kihei resident since 1978 and I'm in the real estate business. I've developed many
shopping centers here on Maui and elsewhere. More importantly, I'm here in support of
Dr. Kehler for several reasons. Number one, he's a great vet. I've known him since
1984. His services are at the top of his particular industry. And as we all know there are
certain needs that we have in the community, and somebody spent a lot of time on our
Community Plan to show that this area was destined to be B-2 Commercial. I wasn't
involved with those hearings so I don't know all the questions that came back and forth,
but I do know that with zoning there can be restrictions placed through our process on
any development. I can testify to that. Now whether it takes more time or more money
which really is the same, that's really a decision that the Planning Department has to
make or the Building Department when they issue these permits, and I don't really
understand why it would have a Conditional Use Permit for this kind of time without
having affected the zoning that was put into the system--God, what?--17 or at least
forwarded into the system 10, 15 years ago. So I support the development. I support
good, solid, thoughtful completion of plans. I have a degree in public administration out
of University of California at Santa Barbara. It doesn't qualify me more than anybody
else that's a Councilperson here, but I understand how the system works as well. So from
a practical standpoint there's nothing that should stop this development. South Kihei
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Road, you've seen it; I've seen it since '78. I've been at Dr. Kehler's office, looked at all
the concerns and I believe he's doing a really good job trying to at least accommodate the
public. So I'm here to support him and I hope that you'll do that. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Wendee Murayama. She'll be followed by Kay Kolbo.
MS. MURAYAMA: Good afternoon. My name's Wendee Murayama. I was born and raised
here on Maui. When I graduated high school in 2005 I began attending University of
California in Davis in Animal Science and Management which is also where I got my
Bachelors of Science degree. I then went on to study my master's in ruminant nutrition
or animal science in Fresno State, at Fresno State University, and in August I will be
attending Michigan State University for my fall semester of veterinarian school. A big
contributor to my future as a veterinarian has been Dr. Kehler. I've worked with
Dr. Kehler since 2005, sorry, December of 2005 when I came home from my first winter
break from college. When I started working with him he was very open and teaching,
open to teaching me what he does and what is actually involved in being a veterinarian.
And fortunately, I am able to be at the point in my life where I can actually start doing
that. I'm going to start attending Michigan State and my intention is to come back to
Hawaii because this is where I was born and raised; this is where I would love to raise my
own family. And working with Dr. Kehler for this long I feel that we have a fairly good
relationship and that coming back and working with him in the future is a very big
possibility for me, even possible in the further future to eventually, possibly purchase his
practice from him or be partners with him. And that's something that I would love to be
able to do instead of staying on the mainland and working up there. One of the main
things that is concerning the veterinary profession for my generation right now is that
there is a lot of them out there so the job market, especially on the mainland is very, very
tough. Coming back to Hawaii, being a local resident and working here will definitely I
feel give me an advantage and be able to help get me into the industry. And also I
studied in at UC Davis and Fresno State which is, which are both strong agricultural
schools. Like I said my master's degree is focused on ruminant nutrition which pretty
much makes me a dairy cattle dietician so I love working with agricultural animals and I
know that's something Maui needs. The USDA currently has Maui classified as an area
of need for veterinarians that work with beef, goats, and swine and fortunately, that's
right in my wheelhouse. So if I were to come back I could work with Dr. Kehler as a
small animal practitioner and also service those needs on Maui as well. And without this
clinic here and without Dr. Kehler here I won't have that opportunity and I won't be able
to go out into the community and fulfill those needs. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anyone have any questions for the testifier? If none, thank
you very much.
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MS. MURAYAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: We'll now check with the remote Offices. Molokai Office, do you have
anybody there to testify? Molokai?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai Office, do you have anyone to give public testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There's no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Hana Office, do you have anyone present to give testimony?
MS. LONO: There's no one waiting to give testimony at the Hana Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Kay Kolbo. She'll be followed by Dee Colton.
MS. KOLBO: Hi, good afternoon. My name is Kay Kolbo. I am an employee with Dr. Kehler.
I have been for just about six years. During those six years I have seen nothing but major
improvements not only inside the clinic, but outside as well, with the gardening, the
landscape, the native plants. On any given day you can come through there and check
out the ponds with the native birds that are coming, nesting, reproducing. Before I started
working for Dr. Kehler, I've been here almost 14 years, I never noticed that clinic. Now
when you drive by you cannot help but notice that clinic and the vast improvements that
have gone on there. He services not only those of us in South Maui but West Maui,
Upcountry, as far as Lanai we have clients. Without this clinic it would be just a
devastation not only to Dr. Kehler who is an absolute fantastic, successful, professional
and personally, he's, you know, an amazing man but it would be just devastating to not
have this clinic, and it would put all of us and all everyone's animals that he does service
out with nowhere to go except for someone else who after being with him for 20-plus
years they trust him and he just he is doing a great service in this community and that's
all I have to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Dee Colton. She'll be followed by Iris Makin.
MS. COLTON: Hello. I'm from Kihei. I've lived there for 14 years. I've been going to
Dr. Kehler for 14 years. I'm not coming with all the expertise that everybody else has
but I am coming as his client and with patients. And the patients you're talking about
here and the business you're talking about is one that saves lives and it's a humane
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business. And from what I can see, Dr. Kehler not only treats those from the inside, the
animals that come in but he treats the land and has a respect for it on the outside. I do
have a background in real estate both in California in Sonoma, before I came here and I
practiced real estate here as well. And what I do know and I want to address what your
question was that there could be a potential gas station, I do know that with sales of
properties and with zonings, zoning properties through title companies, CC&Rs or
whatever conditions that can be ameliorated as well as mitigating wetlands different
circumstances that all can be done through deed of trust and through, through meetings
like this. I don't think it has to be an all black and white or nothing at all. So if
Dr. Kehler is allowed to continue which I hope he is, this would allow all of us who are
his clients and kind of a patient as well, when we go there with our animals it's an
emotional situation, and I've been going to him since I landed on the island. He was the
first one to board my animals under the old, the old, whatever they did, they put 'em in
cages and kept 'ern for a long time, the quarantine act, but he's been a wonderful,
wonderful vet. And I can say after going to others I always come back to him because
his knowledge and expertise and compassion is beyond all others. So what you're
looking at here is not just a business, you're looking at a humane business. And I am
in.. .1 do practice by volunteering since I have been here for multiple humane
organizations and we need Dr. Kehler. We don't have enough vets and by putting him
out of business through this zoning the animals would suffer and I happen to know that
firsthand. He's treated several rescues and they're alive today with forever homes
because of Dr. Kehler. So this is the kind of business that you're looking at and he's
treating one of mine right now. I would have brought her, service animal at 18 years old
but it's kind of hard for her to travel in the heat. But I just hope that you recognize that
and that you can mitigate -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. COLTON: --the zoning through, through this process to allow him to stay in business.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the last person who has signed up to testify is Iris Makin.
MS. MAKLN: Hi, my name is Iris Makin and I'm an employee of Dr. Kehler's for about seven
years now, and I don't know if what I'm testifying will have any bearing on the land use
but I'm here to vouch for his character. He's a wonderful veterinarian. I've worked for
many veterinarians and he's got the God-given touch. You don't see many with this
touch but he's got a God-given touch for these animals He's very compassionate and
he's an honest person. And I don't think he'd every sell the property and turn it into a
dancehall or a bar or anything, so when he says it will stay a vet clinic and be a property
to serve the public I truly believe that. That's about all I have to say. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Lanai Office, you have anyone there to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office, do you have anyone to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hana Office, do you have anyone to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that has not signed up that wishes to come
forward and give public testimony at this time? Seeing none, Members, if there's no
objection I will close public testimony for today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY....
CHAIR CARROLL: We have before us LU-8, Change of Zoning for 1476 South Kihei Road,
site of Kihei Veterinarian [sic] Clinic.

ITEM NO. 8: CHANGE IN ZONING FOR 1476 SOUTH KIHEI ROAD, SITE OF
KIREI VETERINARY CLINIC (IMIED (CC 13-61)
CHAIR CARROLL: Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication 13-61
from Planning Director, transmitting a proposed bill to grant a request from Dr. Roger
Kehler for a Change in Zoning from R-3 Residential District to B-2 Community Business
District for property located at 1476 South Kihei Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii, to allow for
the continued use of the existing veterinarian clinic. Correspondence dated
February 8, 2013, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting revised
proposed bill entitled, A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT
(CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT 1476 SOUTH KIHEI
ROAD, KIHEI, MAUI, HAWAII. The revised proposed bill incorporates the street
address in the title of the bill. Members, we will now receive a PowerPoint presentation
from Leilani Pulmano, Munekiyo and Hiraga, Incorporated. I will call a recess for two
minutes while we lower the screen. We now stand in recess. .. . (gavel). . .
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RECESS:

2:05 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:08 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel). . .The Land Use Committee of July 3, 2013 is now back in
session. Leilani, if you would proceed.
MS. PULMANO: (PowerPoint Presentation) Thank you. Good afternoon, Council members.
My name is Leilani Pulmano with Munekiyo and Hiraga and we're the planning
consultants for this project. We're here today requesting for your recommendations on
the Change in Zoning for the existing Kihei Veterinarian Clinic. I have with me today
Dr. Roger Kehler, the owner and operator of the clinic and also from my office, Mich
Hirano. The Kihei Veterinarian Clinic has been in operation since 1995. It is allowed by
a County Conditional Permit which is valid until September 2013. Since the clinic is a
long-term established use, Dr. Kehler is seeking the appropriate zoning designation to
outright permit the clinic. There are no improvements as part of this request. The State
Land Use designation is Urban, the Community Plan designation is Commercial, and the
Zoning is R-3 Residential. The Change in Zoning request is from R-3 Residential to B-2
Community Business. The Change in Zoning will bring consistency between the
Kihei/Makena Community Plan designation of Commercial and the County's zoning.
This project may be familiar to you as this clinic has been before you for a time extension
in 2008, and at that time the Council had asked Dr. Kehler to come in with a Change in
Zoning request at the next opportunity, and today we are requesting for that approval and
that Change in Zoning request. So to give you a context of where this is, this is—sorryPiilani Highway, South Kihei Road, and Lipoa Street. The clinic is located on the corner
of South Kihei Road and Waiohuli Street. Just to give you some landmarks,
St. Theresa's Church is located here at this corner and the Lipoa Center is here at this
corner here. This photo is the view of the clinic and just to give you a context of what the
clinic is, it's a medical care facility for household pets. It's open Monday to Fridays,
8:00 to 5:00, and Saturdays from 9:00 to noon, and it's closed on Sundays. It offers
24-hours emergency care on an on-call basis. They have quarantine and boarding
services which are all kept indoors and the clinic employs six employees. Dr. Kehler
lives on property above the clinic The clinic, as you can see, resembles a single-family
home and fits in with the character of the neighborhood. This photo shows the enhanced
wetland that was constructed along with the clinic and this was approved by the
Department of Army. I'd like to point out that the property is within the Special
Management Area so if there is any changes to this, it will have to go through a Special
Management Area Permit process. But I want to reiterate again that Dr. Kehler has no
plans at this moment to do anything with his property besides the existing clinic. And
also if there are any changes to his property, he will have to seek a Department of Army
permit to either modify this wetland or change this wetland in any way. This photo is a
closer view of the clinic, and this photo is a view from the makai side of the property
looking mauka towards the clinic and this actually shows you an example of what it
looked like prior to Dr. Kehler enhancing, enhancing his wetland. Dr. Kehler's property
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is just beyond—I'm sorry—right there with the roof. And this photo shows kind of the
nearby apartment and the commercial area of Kihei. And so to summarize, the clinic has
been in operation since 1995. It is allowed by a Conditional Use Permit until
September 2013, and instead of asking for a second time extension Dr. Kehler is seeking
to establish the appropriate zoning for the clinic for consistency to the B-2 Business,
Community Business. There are no improvements planned at this time and since there
are no changes, there's no environmental or infrastructure impacts. Thank you and we're
here to answer any questions that you may have.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. This Committee will now stand in recess until we can raise the
screen. Recess. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:13 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:15 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel). .Land Use Committee meeting of July 3, 2013 is now back in
session. Planning Department, do you have any comment at this time?
MR. FASI: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would just say that the, this matter came before the Maui
Planning Commission on October 9, 2012, and it passed unanimously by all commission
members. However, as you know, they did put two restrictions, two conditions on the
approval. One to limit the height limit to 45 feet; from 60 feet to 45 feet and that a
wetlands management plan be submitted which they have done back in, I believe it was
November of 2012. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Corporation Counsel, do you have any comment at this time?
MR. GIROUX: Not at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is now open for discussion. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I just have, I have a host of
questions but one of the things that, my biggest concern on this one is, you know, if
Dr. Kehler would have, would come for an extension, I have no doubt that his business
would continue to be permitted with a Special Use Permit. My biggest concern and most
of what I'm going to be talking about happens, what happens when he moves on,
whatever, by whichever way, natural causes or decides to move out of town. It would be
really nice if the young lady that came up here and testified that she would like to take
over his business, that would be the most desirable outcome, but right now with B-2, with
all the things that are in B-2 which also allow B-1, a gas station could conceivably be put
there. Now I know it's in an SMA and there's a, there would be huge hurdles but there's
a lot of, a long laundry list of things that could be done in that location that may be more
disruptive to an already filled-in wetlands. You know, it's not the doctor's fault that, that
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way back when we didn't really care about wetlands but we do now. So my biggest
concern is how to preserve his business or a like business and the wetlands from any
further development over there. So I would, Mr. Chair, I have list of, an amendment that
I don't know when we want to do it but I think I'd like to talk about it that proposes a list
of permitted uses on that property.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you'd like to make a proposal for amendment now, I will accept it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I would like everybody to be at least have a chance to
read this and when we do our discussion, so if we could do that, give them a chance to
take a look at it before we go into any motions or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, could we ask that that be handed out?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah. I'm sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. ... (inaudible) ...
COUNOLMEMBER COUCH: I thought they were gonna...
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And while they're handing that out. My other concern is of
course, the continued management of that wetlands. He's doing a fabulous job; I really
like what it looks like and again, looking for the future, looking into the future. One of
the comments I wanted to make about the fact that it is zoned Business, that lot and the
lot next to it in the.. .not zoned but in the Community Plan, found out that the Community
Plan Advisory Committee did not want it Business, the Planning Commission did not
want it Business. It happened in this Chamber where it became business all of a sudden
so I just want the Members to know that as well, not so much for this piece of property
but for another piece of property that may or may not come up to this body at a future
time. I worked with the doctor, Dr. Kehler, and we went through the list of everything
that's allowed in B-1 and B-2 and he and I came up with this list. And as far as I'm-yeah--I want to preface this with this is the existing B-2 and in my Committee we have,
we're working on a new B-2 that would get rid of things like haberdasheries and things
like that, but in the meantime businesses like this list would be acceptable at least in my
eyes in that same location. One of the things that I must note is not on this list is a
veterinary clinic and I'm still pushing to get that on there. Now there might be some
legal issues and we'd have to ask Mr. Giroux whether or not we could put veterinary
clinic because it's not allowed in B-2 now, it will be if the new ordinance passes that
we're working on in the Planning Commission. So I don't know how that fits in because,
and I need Mr. Giroux to kind of help me out on this, because if we don't put it in here
now he's still going to have to go the Planning Commission to get a determination of use,
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I believe because of the item no. jj. It has to go to the Planning Commission. Is that
correct, Mr. Spence and/or Mr. Giroux?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux or Mr. Spence, whoever would like answer the question.
MR. SPENCE: Sure. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I've briefly looked over this list and I
understand the intent of it to allow some flexibility in the use, but I do see the exclusion
of businesses which like gas stations which could potentially have a spill and you know,
threaten the wetlands or you know, cause pollution there and through runoff or whatever.
But I do look at that no. jj and I did note that veterinarians' clinics are not on the list. I
look at that item jj it would allow other retail businesses or commercial enterprises which
are not detrimental to the welfare of the surrounding area, so we would take into account
the wetlands, that's absolutely for sure. But it must be approved by the Planning
Commission as to conforming to the intent of the Maui County Code. So in other words,
if this has to be.. .if this property were rezoned to B-2 with all these conditions on it, they
would still have to go back to the Planning Commission and it's a use determination, it's
not a huge deal, but still, you're saying okay, we're not going to give you zoning but
we're going to send you back to Planning Commission again which doesn't seem to make
much sense.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, and Mr. Chair, I would love to avoid that if via
Mr. Giroux he says we can add that as a use which because it's not listed in any
B districts at this time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Apparently me and the Planning Director disagree.
MR. SPENCE: We have not had this discussion.
MR. GIROUX: You know, my take on it is that the County Code is still the County Code. This
body doesn't give variances. That's within your Charter and it's within your County
Code even though you do have the powers of zoning and you do have the powers of
conditional zoning, it's not in expanding uses but in reducing uses. And that's why when
you look at the, you know, the litany of known uses, it's easy for you as a Council
member to slash 'em out, but when you're adding them then you need the additional
review of the Commission in order to do that due diligence as far as.. .because the Code
which the Council passed gave them that ability to do. So I mean to try to shortcut it now
is.. .when you're making your new B-2 zoning you just say "or other uses the Council
deems necessary". So that's how you would actually speed things up is when you're
actually creating the new B-2 and then you add veterinary clinic and then also on top of
that you add that the Council can add new uses upon review.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, good. I hope Mr. Spence writes that down for our meeting.
But Mr. Chair, question for Mr. Giroux 'cause we are, I mean, way in the middle of like a
twilight zone here. The Planning Commission did say, did approve for B-2 veterinary
clinics in the bill we're working on now, okay, so that is a kind of a Catch-22. I would
like to see if Mr. Giroux.. .1 mean the intent.. .he says it has to go back to the Planning
Commission, but it's already been to the Planning Commission in both this land
use.. .this zoning change as well as in the bill we're working on in the Planning
Committee. So the Planning Commission has said it's okay in B-2 to have veterinary
clinic in multiple occasions. The Council last we met said it's okay. We haven't passed
it through, all the way through, but I don't see.. .1 don't want to have to put the guy
through another set of red tape if we can fix it here. If we can't fix it here I understand
that. My then recommendation would be to defer this until we finish up with the B-2
which is coming out of Planning here pretty soon. So it may be a timing issue. If we can
avoid adding red tape now I would love to do that, but if it's a whole legal issue on
how...what order things have to happen then I'm willing to deal with that as well.
CHAIR CARROLL: I have a question before I turn, call on Mr. Hokama. On j j over here, on
the permitted uses that he.. .on the handout, do you have the handout? Alright, any other
retail business, commercial enterprises that are similar in character of rendering sales or
commodities or performance of services to the community and not detrimental to the
welfare of the surrounding area; provided that, such uses shall be approved by the
Commission conforming to the intent of Chapter 19.18, Maui County Code; and further
provided that, those B-1 Neighborhood District and B-2 Community Business
District-permitted uses as of the effective date of this ordinance, which have been
specifically excluded by this ordinance are hereby prohibited. Exclusively prohibited,
but this veterinarian clinic is not exclusively prohibited so would this section allow for
the veterinarian clinic?
.

MR. SPENCE: Sorry, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence or Mr. Giroux.
MR. SPENCE: Would you please ask that again?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. Would you please ask the question again? We were following along with
you on this item jj.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. The...
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CHAIR CARROLL: The question is if the veterinarian clinic would fall into this category, the
description that this is given over here, if the veterinarian clinic would fall into that
category? Because it says that others, no other uses that are not exclusively prohibited,
the veterinarian clinic is not prohibited in any way -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and so it would seem that the veterinarian clinic could fall under this
right here and that's what I'd like an opinion on.
MR. GIROlUX: Right. Yeah, Chair, we understand. The difficulty is, is that we're looking at
the law as it stands now, we're looking at a conditional, an ordinance that will have
conditions and also we're anticipating a law that's going to actually be different in the
future and that hasn't been executed yet So just so there's no confusion all we can deal
with what, is what, is what is in the books now. And what is in the books now is that we
have our B-2 zoning and we have an opportunity to craft conditions under the Change in
Zoning ordinance which can create conditions. So working with that, looking at jj which
would be a condition of the new ordinance that would change the zoning, the language as
written would not affect the applicant going to the Planning Commission and having the
veterinary clinic approved. As the language reads, it's only those uses which have a line
through 'em would not be allowed if there's a new law that actually would allow those
uses also. The new law could also propose new uses. As the condition is written now,
those new uses would then go through the Commission to be added on if necessary;
however, the new law as I mentioned earlier, could take the Commission out altogether
and just allow the Council to approve those new uses.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I understand what Corporation
Counsel is saying, Chairman, and I understand what Mr. Couch is trying to achieve
regarding the applicant's unfortunate situation. I'm just wondering how we got to this
Council and this Committee since we have this outstanding concern of whether we can
move forward or not. Because you know, I guess another way I could say, it's not a
permitted use even if it's in, you know, does.. .we're going to give him as B-2, it's not a
current permitted use as the law currently stands, okay, not as what is the law is intended
to be amended. And so I'm wondering what advice Commission and Department gave
the applicant where it's at this point now of a long, long and costly process for the doctor
that more than likely, the way I see it, we cannot take action today.
CHAIR CARROLL: I can answer the question as far as when the Committee received this for
review that it was approved and it was deemed by the Planning Commission and the
Planning Department as it was acceptable and could be passed out as it is allowing the
clinic to operate. But we can ask for further... (inaudible)...
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Which is kind of...and Chairman, I appreciate your
comments but nonetheless what we've just heard from Mr. Giroux as the Corporation
Counsel to this Committee, my understanding is we cannot. So why wasn't it already
told upfront to the doctor that, you know, part of the requirements will be Council to
amend either B-1 or B-2 to allow veterinary clinics, so that we don't reach this kind of
continued interesting situations that our Council is continually placed in. You know, I
hate to revise laws on the fly, and whether, you know, more than likely it's not fair to the
doctor but I feel bad because I don't know how we got to this point today, this afternoon
being asked to make a determination when hearing Mr. Giroux it's not really a permitted
use currently.
MR. GIROUX: Chair, can I just clarify?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: The issue, the language we use when we say "permitted use", and then we say
"not permitted use", and then we have "conditional use", then we have "auxiliary use".
The way the B-2 law is written it's a really strange monster. It's an acceptable almost
familiar but not named use. So it's not prohibited; it's just that until the Commission puts
a name on it then it's a use that would be allowed, and that's why I'm very adamant that
the Commission give, gets one more whack at it according to your law because that's the
body that would put a name to veterinary clinic. And the reason I say name is because if
we put veterinary clinic and then somebody said well, it's not really a clinic, it's a
hospital so is that the prohibited use? Or somebody says well, it's just an animal care
center; is that now a prohibited use because the names keep changing and that's why B-2
has this strange animal. And it's basically really strange because you don't even have a
public hearing. It's noticed but you only get your Sunshine Law notice. That means you
don't have to do the Title 19.510 publication; you don't have to go through the rigorous
zoning type of notice. It's just you show up to the Planning Commission, you tell them
this is what we're doing, can you give us a name, and does it fit into your category? So
it's just that, that is an extra step but it's there because the names keep changing and the
County has acknowledged that. So in a sense it's not a prohibited use; it's just a use that
hasn't been given a name yet. So the reason we're here is that once you get your B-2
zoning it makes it very easy to go into Planning Commission and say we've got our
zoning and this is the use we want and the Commission goes well, what is it? And we
say, well, today we're calling it a veterinarian clinic. Yesterday we used to call it a
veterinary care center but before that we used to call it animal husbandry so you get this
flux that the Commission can take care of. And all we need is the zoning first and then
the Commission can have that simple hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, that's an interesting word, Counselor. I've learned
nothing is easy in this County. So, you know, Chairman, maybe at the appropriate time I
would ask you to consider a recess because I think we may need to do some adjustments.
And I don't know if it's possible so I would like discuss this with you and legal counsel
as an alternative so that we can finally make a decision and let the good doctor know one
way or another what we're going to do with his request this afternoon. So at the
appropriate time, Chair, I would ask you to consider granting a recess. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you satisfied now with the explanation of how we got to this point
though? Mr. Giroux has answered you and from my comments earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. I'm not happy with the response but I understand it,
Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, because -MR. SPENCE: Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --I'm not comfortable with letting the Commission do
Council work in crafting what should be the intent of our ordinances. We should be clear
in our ordinances and for them to execute it, not to reinterpret it and make their own
decisions of what is permitted or not permitted in the zoning from the Maui County Code.
That's our job; we should be taking care of that. And that is why Mr. Couch has his
revised ordinance proposal for consideration in his Committee.
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: That is what this Committee will have to decide. Further questions?
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: If I could read something out of our existing County Code. Our existing County
Code, this is 19.18.020, item no. 66. This is existing County B-2 zoning. It goes through
the long litany of uses, haberdasheries which I know are strangely absent from the,
Mr. Couch's proposed amendment which have no impacts but anyway. Number 66, any
other retail businesses or commercial enterprises that are similar in character of rendering
sales of commodities or performance of services to the community and are not
detrimental to the welfare of the surrounding area provided that such uses shall be
approved by the Commission as to the, as to conforming to the intent of this Chapter.
This authority is already given to the Planning Commission. This is not something that
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Mr. Couch is making up or whatever. This is something we routinely go to the Planning
Commission, does this particular use if it's a cell phone repair shop, it's not listed in the
all, whatever 65 uses but it's something that's not named here. Does this conform to the
intent of this ordinance 9 Planning Commission, "yes" or "no"? And they say, "yes"
that's fine, they can go ahead. If they say, "no" then not but that authority is already
given to the Planning Commission by our County Code.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Real quick follow-up 'cause I don't want to get away from
what the purpose of why we meeting this afternoon which is the doctor's request. So
what happens if...we got three Planning Commissions. So what if every Planning
Commission interprets it and makes different decisions on the same type of
consideration? What happens? What if Maui says yes for this and let's say Molokai and
Lanai Commission say no, we don't agree.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. This is...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we can have a law that allows one island to have it one
way and two other, the two sister islands do it a different way?
MR. SPENCE: The way that our Code is currently written and it is site specific. On this
particular location whether it be South Kihei Road or whether it be somewhere in
Kahului or on Lanai or Molokai, within this zoning district the particular Planning
Commission will look at that proposed use and that's not our.. .we look.. .the Planning
Department looks at the list of uses and goes okay, it's not listed here. We don't.. .we
think you can do it but we need to go ask the Planning Commission. And it's the
Planning Commission of that particular island. So in this particular case, if B-2 were
passed we would say, okay, Dr. Kehler, sorry but we have to go back to the Planning
Commission. It's a technicality; we know you've been operating for, you know, a
decade. We've already made, the Planning Commission as well as the County Council
through the Conditional Permit process has already determined that a veterinary clinic is
appropriate for this site but we still have to go ask the Commission. So we can proceed
from here. It's just this one more little step that we have to take.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for allowing the Director and
Corporation Counsel to respond. I'm happy to yield the floor but I do have some other
questions regarding the Federal agencies. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I'm going to start.. .I'm going to go right.., let
me start down by the end, Ms. Balsa, because she's way over there and sometimes I
forget to look at that side. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Actually, Ms. Crivello's had her hand up for a long time.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's okay. You can start.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're okay. Alright. I've been looking through these
documents and I.. .I've been looking through the documents and I find it kind of
interesting, because in the stuff we got from the Planning Commission in the docket,
under conclusions of law it says the pursuant to Section 19.510.050 of the Maui County
Code, the proposed request meets the criteria for a Change in Zoning as followed. And
underneath there, three down, it says, the proposed request meets the intent of the
purpose of the B-2 Community Business District. So somebody has already looked at
this and that's the Planning Commission to say that it's okay. And I looked to see who
was present at that 'cause I wanted to see who the legal person was and it was Mike
Hopper, our Deputy Corporation Counsel. So you know, somebody's already looked at
this and said it meets the legal requirements so I don't know if we need to get into that.
Just my thoughts.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I appreciate the explanation from Chair Baisa
on that. I just have a comment or maybe a question to come with it. When I look into
this matter, how many years this person has come in for Conditional Permit and running
his vet center which is what he will continue to do accordingly, and the fact is he wants to
legitimize it, I guess, if that's the right word but what the lay people have to go through to
try and be in compliance if that's allowed. Number one, I understand it's a SMA area.
It's.. .anybody that would want to do anything else, including the doctor himself would
have to come back through the whole mess of an SMA and that's not an easy and cheap
process. The other concern I have or, well, I would say "appreciation", I had the
opportunity because I'm not from Maui and wanted to know where this site is and what
does it involve with the wetlands, and I often look at Kihei as somewhat where, like
where I live on Molokai. And you know, I think I could learn something from this
gentleman on how he had enhanced the wetlands and it's not too many people that do
that. And you know, I was able to even witness the 'auku'u, the Hawaiian stilt birds
there and they have their habitat. And you know, I truly appreciated that effort as... and
you can also see the ecological balance and the importance and even to hold on to
the...oh, it's like a flood control. So I'm not from the area but just you know, walking
the lepo or the grounds just made me feel appreciative what an individual, the efforts that
he's gone through to enhance or preserve what we value. So and then we're coming back
to all these other steps and I think of myself too as I have gone through the Building
Permit process, it's tough. And we want to make it tougher. So I just want to see how
we can go through the process to allow compliance, and because this has been ongoing
and I understand prior Council had asked the doctor to come back and ask for the Change
in Zoning. So if Chair Baisa is saying Planning Commission have allowed that and I
respect my colleague from Kihei as to his, that's his area or the area that is part of his
constituents which is all ours, I'm trying to understand why we need to continue to add
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more steps, and more expenses, and more challenges for this doctor who has been doing
this forever if! understand it right.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And yeah, as I understand, the doctor
was asked to I guess just get a Change in Zoning versus the Conditional Use permitting
through Planning Commission every five years or what have you and that's fine, you
know, I think. But my concern is looking at the conditions were that have already been
placed and then have thus far not been met. In Mr. Fasi's opening statements in regards
to Condition 9 where, Mr. Fasi, you state that it has been met there's a plan has been
given but technically it was a report. For me there's a very distinctive difference between
a report and a plan. A plan by the way that's supposed to be, you know, provided in
perpetuity for protection of this wetland and the, you know, the wildlife and the
endangered species and what have you in conjunction with consultation with Department
of Fish and Wildlife, and U.S. Army Corps, and on and on, State and Federal agencies
which 'fil today have not been met. So there's been many years down the road where
that particular condition in my eyes has not been met. So for me, I understand we want to
give this Change of Zoning with some protections in place,! believe Mr. Couch wants to
do. But you know what, where's the enforcement on it? In the end when it leaves these
Chambers or it leaves Maui Planning Commission who's keeping an eye? Who's making
sure that they're being complied with and implemented? And by all means, I hear the
community and the veterinarian clinic is doing an awesome job, and I'm all for, you
know, vets and I have animals and it's a needed service so I congratulate and commend
Dr. Kehler and his workers. But you know, I'm looking at the bigger picture and I
understand where Mr. Hokama's coming from too. So it's something where if I can feel,
you know, there is protection in place, that no, a gas station's not going to be there for
some reason the current owner moves on, sells, what have you then great. But you know,
I'm looking at current, current enforcement and in certain ways it has not happened. So I
have concerns with that, Chair. I'd like to, I'd like to see more vetting out of this
particular subject matter. I feel bad as Mr. Hokama says why have we.. .why is it here? I
get the whole justifications but, you know, there's some documentation I believe that was
said was given, then Department said no, it wasn't given. There's a few discrepancies
going on here. So for me, I'm not 100 percent comfortable at this point to make any
hard, you know, cold-cut decisions on this particular matter. But I want to thank you for
bringing it forward and thereby here we are having the discussion. But I just wanted to
share my concerns and things that I see that are in a sense incomplete, in a sense that
haven't been followed through in the past years. If we're going to move forward then I
want to make sure there's some, you know, there's some.. .things are going to be
complied with basically and the protections will be put in place in perpetuity. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, again. And I appreciate the comments
by our, my fellow colleagues. Just wanted to remind everybody, yeah, we can put a
condition on there for little bit stricter adherence to a management plan or getting a
wetlands management plan, I can see that as potential condition. The other thing that in
my amendment I'm trying to make it less onerous for the guy. I, I.. .if what Member
Baisa said is true then maybe he doesn't have to go back to the Commission because the
Commission already says it's okay. That would be the best. We can do the Change in
Zoning with these...with this condition on here and we'd be done. That would be the
best we can hope for so we don't have to put him through the wringer again, and there is
a bit of a deadline on this because his Conditional Use Permit expires in September. And
he's doing what he's been asked to do by this body, different group but in 2005 I think it
was he came here or whatever date it was he came here and he was told don't come back
again with a Conditional Use Permit, come back with a Change in Zoning 'cause that's
what it says in the Community Plan. So, you know, he's doing what he's asked to do and
I just would like this to be the end of it for him if at all possible and if we can get with
what Chair Baisa read and a ruling from Mr. Giroux, we may be okay to go, be good to
go from here. And so I guess I'm asking Mr. Giroux if what Ms. Baisa read would
constitute enough so that he doesn't have to go back to the Planning Commission?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I was asking Mr. Giroux.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Giroux.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I didn't realize it was a question you wanted to ask him right now. I'm
sorry. Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Thanks, Chair I was hoping you'd go to Victorino. You know, we often get
asked this question, you know, because of these types of...it's kind of checks and
balances, you know, within the zoning process, and you know, our office always tries to
look at the most efficient way that the law would work. It I think one of the biggest
hook-ups in this process is that before you can use the terms of a zoning ordinance, the
property has to be under the jurisdiction of that ordinance That means you gotta change
the zoning before you're going to use the process of that zoning. And in this situation,
you gotta get your B-2 before you go to your Commission to ask for that use. It doesn't
make a lot of sense but Corp. Counsel didn't write this law, and that's what we need to
look at when we're writing laws is when.. .if we are going to have a process that is going
to delegate these types of decision makings to an agency then we have to be sure that
that's what we want to do, because until the property has the zoning you cannot use the
process that is given within the zoning to change the use. So although Corp. Counsel is
sympathetic in these situations, I mean, where there's, there might be a possibility of
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concurrent processing, where there's, you know, you know, you have your Community
Plan and your zoning go through at the same time, you know, those types of concurrent
processes. It's just that in this situation where the trigger is zoning and you can see the
tension between Council and the Commission, who's going to make the decision?
Where's the power lay? Why aren't we making that decision? Why did we delegate it to
them? That discussion is in the law already. It's been done. So that's why it's the law
because we're going to follow the process. The definition of what is going to be allowed
once the zoning is changed to Business is going to be determined by the Planning
Commission but it needs to be changed to Business first.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And Mr. Chair, if I may follow up with that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe, from what Ms. Balsa read, and I still haven't been
able to find it, your office said it complies with the law and it's okay.
MR. GLROUX: Right. It complies with law to be changed to B-2 which has 100 of business
uses and you want to gut 90 percent of 'em. So the one we want to add we need to go
back to the Planning Commission to get an okay for. That's the process. I'd like it to go
faster; I wish I could but I didn't write this law. I'm trying to follow it and the process is
the process.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Maybe during Mr. Hokama's recess we can...I can get
him in the corner and talk to him too, Mr. Giroux.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'd like to call on Mr. Victorino next since he's been so patient over there.
COUNCLLMEMBER VICTORINO: All I've gotten so far is who's on first, what's on second, I
don't know who is on third. I really, you know, this is ridiculous. And so I think it's
time to call a recess because we're going in circles and you know, Mr. Chair, it's not your
fault. It's the ambiguity of our laws and our ordinances and we've come to this, we had
this this morning, now I got to get this this afternoon. No wonder I get headaches. I
understand why now. So I'd rather you just call a recess instead of me asking any more
questions which I don't think is going to clarify anything more until we can get some
clarification. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: I will make one of my rare comments as Chair. Myself and my Committee
Staff, we reviewed this extensively. We worked with the Planning Department and all
the different ones, and we came to the conclusion with all the information that we had
that this was appropriate and that it could be, any questions that came up, the ones today
and the other questions could be satisfied by putting conditions onto the application.
Everything was in order. Sometimes the system that we have bringing it forward leaves
some things to be desired, but this Council has a lot of authority and we can deal with it.
-24 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 3, 2013

And I would hope we could deal with this today. I never bring anything forward to this
Committee that I feel that can't be done. And that's where we're at today. And did
Mr. Hokama have something further? I'm sorry. I passed you up that's why.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was going to ask you for a recess, but maybe that would be
a good time because also you know, I think the doctor, you know, would need to at least
have some discussions with his consultants, because I don't know if they knew they had
to go back, potentially go back to the Commission too. So you know, I would hope that
we would allow the applicant, the doctor to be able to confer with his professionals that
are assisting him to see if they have any issues regarding the timing of the current
Conditional Permit deadlines and whatnot. Because, you know, I've supported the
Conditional Permit, you know, I've voted for it to support it in the past, and I would like
to see us come to a reasonable resolution this afternoon if possible, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. You know what -MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --it's 3 o'clock and this is the time we usually take our recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Carla.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Staff would just like to point out that there are a couple of
documents in the Committee's record that the Committee may want to take a look at
during the recess. In the Planning Department's report, at Page 19, at the top of Page 19,
there is a statement where the Department says upon approval of the Change in Zoning
the applicant will make a request for a use determination to the Maui Planning
Commission to allow a veterinary clinic as an approved use in the B-2 District. So that
was something that was considered by the Planning Commission. In addition, attached to
the Department's report as a reply to Exhibit 5 is correspondence date July 20, 2012,
from the applicant's consultant where they acknowledge the need to go back to the
Planning Commission. They site Section 19.18.020 the provision, paragraph 66 that was
read by the Planning Director and acknowledge that as part of the CIZ application
process if recommended for approval to the County Council, Dr. Kehler will request an
approval by the Maui Planning Commission for a veterinary clinic as a permitted use
within the B-2 Community Business Zoning District. So Staff did just want to point out
that those documents are in the Committee's record. Also if Staff could just take a
moment to briefly explain that in Member Couch's proposed amendment that was
distributed today, there's also an Attachment "2". Attachment "2" is basically lists all the
permitted uses in B-1 as well as the permitted uses in B-2 which incorporate by reference
the permitted uses of B-1. And it shows what Member Couch is recommending be
revised. So anything that's been lined out he's recommending be removed as an outright
permitted use. I just wanted to explain too that you'll see that bed and breakfast homes
and short-term rental homes are set out twice in both B-1 and B-2. Member Couch did
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want to permit those but removed the duplicative reference. And with respect to the
language, the any other retail business or commercial enterprise language, paragraph 66,
that's at the back of the attachment, it shows the revisions that are being proposed by
Member Couch to that particular permitted use. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. It is 3 o'clock and people do have physical needs so we are
going to take a ten-minute recess. We'll stand in recess for ten minutes. .. . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:01 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:15 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of July 3, 2013 is now back in
session. Mr. Spence, you have some comment?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A number of the Committee members have asked
about the wetlands and, you know, what actually took place, what were the requirements
for being next door to the wetlands and building on the property, et cetera. So I thought I
would one, I'll make a couple of comments. One, I asked the applicant and his
representative and maybe they would care to comment afterwards, what actually, you
know, maybe more detail on what took place, but two, just comment, also comment that
there are other regulatory mechanisms in place for the wetlands. The first thing is
when... for Mr. Kehler to have built his clinic he would have had to have already
submitted for an Army Corps permit to build that. What you have as a result of that
permit is an enhanced wetlands where maybe you had a degraded wetlands before, we
saw the photographs of what was there, you know, now you have an aquatic habitat that
where you're getting stilts and you know, it's actually better than it was is the bottom
line. The.. .he did submit his plan to the Army Corps; they did approve. They.. .with the
Army Corps, they don't write letters back. It's not like going to Environmental
Management and saying okay is their plan fine and they'll write you a nice letter back
saying yes or no. They, they thought it was fine is my understanding. Okay, so, and
since then he's been writing these reports and that's a part...I see those as a part of
the... in the Committee packet. No matter whether this Committee recommends a
condition on the, you know, for the zoning regarding the wetlands or not, anytime
Mr. Kehler or a subsequent owner comes in for a Building Permit or a Change in Use,
they're in the Special Management Area. Because of the sensitive nature of that area,
because it's, you know, right next to a wetlands and now we have endangered species on
the site, that SMA assessment is going to be going to the Army Corps and going to U.S.
Fish and Wildlife. They're going to have a lot to say about that, about whether they think
the change in use is going to affect those wetlands or not. It's.. .the Special Management
Area process is supposed to be environmental and it triggers other environmental
reviews. Those safeguards are actually more effective than, you know, whatever
Conditions of Zoning that this Committee puts on there, because it involves a much more
up close and personal kind of review through the different agencies. So just tell
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you as Planning Director I'm very comfortable with the zoning, and I'm also very
comfortable that these wetlands are going to be protected.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for letting the Director give us those
comments. It's much appreciated. I think one of the things that may assist the
Committee that I appreciated during your granting of the recess was the better
understanding of a handout given to us by the Department, so I would ask for your
allowing Mr. Fasi to please explain the handout that he prepared for us, because it
brought some clarity for me and I think it might also help the other Committee members.
If you would allow it, please, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Fasi.
MR. FASI: Thank you, Mr. Chair Thank you, Councilman Hokama for bringing it to my
attention. Sometimes working with the stuff every day we take too much for granted.
The first page you see here, the area all in pink is the Special Management Area. I just
wanted to give you a feel for where the property lay in the Special Management Area.
The second page depicts the zoning designation. The first number, for example Al, is
Apartment Zoned 1, Al, MF is multi-family. And I apologize for not putting a legend in
there; again, we just take it for granted, using these acronyms every day. But what this
basically shows is the neighborhood zoning in the area. So the first designation is a
Title 19 zoning, the second designation is a Community Plan. And what this also shows
is that have, had, should it be changed to B-2 that it's not entirely unreasonable to put B-2
on this particular lot, because there are, there are existing B-2s in the immediately
surrounding area. And then the third one is your, your Bing map aerial shot of the
property. And if you'll look closely at the subject property, the wetlands is actually not
that pond that is shown. The actual wetlands that we're discussing is kind of that golf
course-looking strip of land on the side of Dr. Kehler's house. That's actually the
wetlands we're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The blue dot? The blue dot area?
MR. FASI: Not... (i a

i e .., down here.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. It's got a blue dot on it?
MR. FASI: Yes. It's got a blue dot on it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Holcama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman for allowing Mr. Fasi to explain
the handout, 'cause that really made it a little bit more clearer to me. And so
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understanding it better, I'm more comfortable to tell you that I'm happy to be able to
make a decision this afternoon on this application. If I may ask Director Spence,
currently, you know, we revise.. .we amend laws here and there, so I'm not too current on
your authority, but can you administratively extend, give a time extension on the
Conditional Permit that is currently being applied to the doctor?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Yes, it depends on what the condition says, to extend. All Conditional Permits have that
one condition. The wording on them varies a little bit. Some say "may be extended by the
County Council" in which case I couldn't, no matter what.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: Some say extend in accordance with 19...1 think it's 64 [sic]. In that case, 19.64 [sic]
says I can. I'm not sure what the conditions of this permit exactly say, the current Conditional
Permit.
MR. FASI: I'll find it.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. Paul is going to take a look for that exactly what it says.
COUNCILMEMBER HOICAMA: Yeah. We just quote the section 19.40--I guess--.090. So I just want
to make sure we don't put the doctor in an unsavory position, and so if you can also
administerially extend it as we move this forward, you know, then at least we know and the
doctor as the applicant knows that he can continue to operate.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. Okay. And...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Yes. Thank you. Council Staff as well as Planning Staff found the conditions,
and it does say this Conditional Permit beyond this 12-year period going back to 2001,
may be granted pursuant to Section 19.40.090 of the Maui County Code. So that section,
this Council had previously amended that section saying that the Planning Director could
administratively extend it provided that nothing in the permit has changed. So, yes. The
short answer is yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: 'Kay. Good. So...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that helps me, Chair, 'cause, you know, with timing for
Council agenda and everything else, I just want to make sure that we don't impede the
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doctor by, you know, not having him able to continue to operate his veterinary
operations. So that helps me a lot. So I'm done, Chairman and I'll be awaiting
Mr. Couch's recommend.. .not recommend but his -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --amendments. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, we still have quorum. We are going to.. .one Member
has a prior commitment, we're going to lose quorum in a few minutes or have bare
quorum and then it's getting on, so I was going to ask for a motion on the floor but before
we do that I'm going to ask Mr. Couch, he had some amendments, and do the
amendments first or we can.. .we'll put the motion...I'm going to have a call for a
motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah but you have to call for a motion on the floor. Yeah.
CHALR CARROLL: If you'll call for the question, I will give the recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would like to hear your recommendation, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Chair will entertain a motion for passage on first reading
a revised proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from R-3
Residential District to B-2 Community Business Zoned District, Conditional Zoning for
Property Situated at 1476 South Kihei Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii; and filing of the
communication.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Baisa. Discussion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair I move to amend or actually amend the
bill by adding a condition, Condition no. 3 as described in my handout.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Balsa. Discussion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We did discuss this. I don't have any
changes that I wanted to make. I did want to make a change but I guess I can't so.. .and I
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talked to the applicant and he, they're well aware that they have to go through back to the
Planning Commission although it is a, it's a pretty routine procedure and not very
expensive so I'm willing to leave that out at this time. Although I may ask, Mr. Giroux,
what happens if we now allow veterinary clinics later in B-2 what happens here with his
conditional uses? Because it's now not listed.
MR. GIROUX: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is there a way we can list it to say pending any...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Just to keep it short. Because veterinary.., if the new law says that veterinary
clinics are an outright use in the B-2 then it would be, he would have an outright use. If
that ordinance is done quicker than this, then the ability for them to get in front of the
Planning Commission they can start their use once the ordinance is passed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So therefore, Mr. Chair, I'm fine with the way it's
written here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussions to the amendment? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOICAMA: Just a point of clarification, the amendment takes into
account both Attachment "1" and Attachment "2", Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the amendment? Hearing none, all in favor...
COUNCILMEMBER HOICAMA: Chairman? I'm sorry to interrupt.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just want to make sure that the applicant is aware and is
knowledgeable of the proposal and that, you know, there's no issues, 'cause part of
conditioning of zoning is of course compliance to conditions and if the applicant is not
willing to comply, you know, we might need to consider other options. So if either the
doctor or his representative could -CHAIR CARROLL: There's no objection.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --quickly give us a comment please on the consideration?
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CHAIR CARROLL: No objection. If the applicant could identify yourself at the microphone.
MS. PULMANO: Aloha, my name is Leilani Pulmano with Munekiyo and Hiraga.
Councilmember Holcama, thank you for this opportunity to speak on behalf of this
amendment. And Dr. Kehler and Councilmember Couch did talk about that and we are
all in agreement. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOICAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman. Sorry for
the... (i a i e ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the amendment? Hearing none, all
in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran,
Couch, Crivello, and Hokama.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers Victorino and
White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED amendment to add Condition No. 3.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, before I,
trying to figure out a way to make
this next amendment. Right now the current, the conditions on our bill that we're talking
about it which by the way, Members, is dated I believe February 8 th—is that right?—and
the conditions listed there are that the existing wetlands be maintained and that building
heights be limited to a maximum of 45 feet. Just wondering if the Members would
entertain, if they're okay with Condition 1 or do we need to change, tweak the language
on Condition 1 and then, you know, that's some of the other Members that I...
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CHAIR CARROLL: You need to actually, we can't do a straw poll. You need to make the
motion and see.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I'm not sure what the language would be. If other
Members have concerns about it I'd like to hear 'em. If not, I'm okay with...you know
what, maybe I'll say that the.. .1 move to.. .go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEM13ER HOKAMA: The way I understand Condition 1, Chairman, and reading
the documents that Planning Department submitted to us particularly how the
Commission had discussion on this and the conditions that the Council had previously
put on the Conditional Permit approval, if that is still the same and it's going to be
reviewed by the Department as the same and the applicant understands it's the same, I
can go with it. But if there's going to be a difference of reading of what was the current
approved Conditional Permit regarding the wetlands is different from this then I think
then Mr. Couch may have a point that we need to clarify it better. But if it is not, I'm
ready to go with the language as proposed, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch. Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I got no problem with the way we stated it in the Conditional
Permit regarding the mitigation, planning, everything else. If that's the way we going to
protect and maintain the wetland and as I understand the doctor has enhanced the wetland
then I'm okay with the language, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And Mr. Chair, if I may?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would encourage too that the Members support this and if
there isn't a concern or another way to phrase that condition so that a stricter adherence
or what not, we could do that at first reading. So if the Members want to do some study
as to how they can word that a little bit better if they're not pleased with the way it works
now, I submit that we can do that at first reading. So as it stands now I'm ready to call
for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And I, yeah, I have no problem with the
language in the condition, it's just that it needs some type of extra teeth or hammer
behind it or something to make sure that the applicant complies basically and that
somehow it's enforced and followed through in perpetuity. So, I mean, if there can be
language inserted on first reading I'll be more than happy but I think some type of notion
in regards to, I know we can't revoke zoning, but something to where no added permits
or water meters or something that will enhance or grow the project scale I guess in a
sense until that particular condition has been met, right? I mean some wording of that
sort, maybe Mr. Corporation Counsel or someone, just so there's a little bit more punch
behind that condition in a sense on our behalf to make sure it's adhered to and that
applicant has, gets the message that...
CHAIR CARROLL: I agree and the Chair and the Staff can work out the wording -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: --that you are proposed and do the amendment at first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: I have no problem with that and I think it's actually something that we
should do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor as amended? All those in
favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran,
Couch, and Hokama.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councihnembers Crivello,
Victorino, and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and
FILING of communication.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, thank you. I realize we have bare quorum and I deeply
appreciate all the four Members that are remained over here for this meeting. This Land
Use Committee meeting of July 3, 2013 stands adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 3:35 p.m.
APPROVED:
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